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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Lihue Civic Center Historic District is comprised of a park and 
three buildings, the County Building, the County Building Annex, and 
the County Courthouse. All features are located within one city 
block, a large open space in the heart of downtown Lihue, a town of 
4,000 people. Surrounded by a shopping center, business and resi­ 
dential areas, and more recent government buildings, the district 
is one of several distinct elements contributing to Lihue T s urban 
fabric, and represents the historic center of this major plantation 
town, Kauai's county seat.

The three buildings house county government offices and courts, and 
serve as a hub for government activities on the island of Kauai. 
Built within a twenty-five year period, they represent the archi­ 
tectural aspirations of their time, employing the popular neo­ 
classical revival and Spanish Mission revival styles. The build­ 
ings are all of masonry construction and of one or two stories in 
height, which is in keeping with the scale of the city.

The oldest of the buildings is the County Building, erected in 1913. 
Designed by the Honolulu firm of Ripley § Davis, it is a two-story, 
concrete building rendered in a neo-classical revival style. This 
rectangular building is five bays wide with its design emphasis 
placed on the center, outset, entry bay. Approached by pyramiding 
steps, the two-story high pedimented entry is distinguished by its 
Ionic columns, wrought iron light fixtures and its frieze with the 
legend "County Building" in the center and abstracted Ionic designs 
above either pilaster. The building sits on a raised foundation 
and terminates with a simple parapet. Each bay contains a jalousie 
window on the first and second floor with an air conditioner in the 
transom space. The windows and the removal of a metal cornice, 
which was located below the parapet, are the only major exterior 
alterations.

The interior focuses upon a central two-story open foyer which 
features a concrete staircase. The stairway divides at the mid- 
height landing to give access to each side of the second floor. A 
square iron balustrade with wood handrailings surrounds the gallery 
on the second floor. These are all original features. The build­ 
ing faces a park with a large expanse of green lawn with palm trees. 
Originally the palms were located only on either side of a no longer 
extant walkway, which led to the county building.

To the right of the County Building is the County Building Annex, 
which was built in 1930 as the Territorial Office Building. Designed 
by Honolulu architect Hart Wood, this modest one-story reinforced
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Lihue Civic Center Historic District, as the center of government 
activity on the island of Kauai, is of local political and governmental 
significance. Located adjacent to the shopping center, the focal 
corner of the two main arterial strips which comprise downtown Lihue, 
the district stands as a distinct element within the cityscape and 
embodies the history of the development of county government on Kauai 
and all the events associated with it.

Lihue dates from the late 1830's when Kaikioewa, the governor of 
Kauai, moved his home from the traditional seat of government, Waimea, 
to the hilly lands overlooking Nawiliwili Bay. Here he established 
an early sugar cane plantation and supposedly called the area Lihue, 
the name of the place on Oahu from which he came. With Kaikioewa's 
death in 1839 the new plantation foundered, but in 1849 was revital­ 
ized as Lihue Plantation by Henry A. Peirce, Charles Reed Bishop, 
and William Little Lee. In 1851, a frame courthouse was built on 
lands east of the present civic center district, and in 1854, the 
Rice family, who eventually came to control Lihue Plantation, bought 
into this enterprise. During most of the nineteenth century, Lihue, 
with its courthouse and plantation store (located on the present 
shopping center lands), served as the center of island government, 
with Governor Paul Kanoa (1845-1876) and a number of his successors 
living in the area.

Following annexation, the Territorial government passed the County 
Act in 1905, establishing county governments on the four largest 
islands in the Hawaii chain. Lihue became the county seat of Kauai 
and the commissioners held monthly meetings in the 1851 courthouse. 
In. 1913 the present County Building was erected, the first structure 
in the territory built expressly to house a county government. With 
its completion, the 1851 courthouse was razed, with Lihue High School 
eventually being built on that site. The area surrounding the County 
Building developed as the hub of government activities with the 
construction of the Territorial Office Building in 1930 and the County 
Courthouse in 1938. Originally the County Courthouse was to be built 
in the park in front of the County Building; however, public outcry 
against that location resulted in the construction of Umi Street and 
the Courthouse on its present site.
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concrete building is rendered in a Spanish Mission style. It features 
a red tiled, double pitched, hipped roof, stucco walls and a centered 
recessed lanai (porch) with a pair of Doric columns. Projected windows 
are located on the sides of the building.

To the rear of the Annex is the County Courthouse, fronting on Umi 
Street, which was built contemporaneously with the courthouse. The 
cruciform shaped, one-story, reinforced concrete building is rendered 
in a Spanish Mission style, with stucco walls and a red tiled, double 
pitched hipped roof with gablets. It is distinguished by an outset 
en"try lanai (porch) with square columns. The building is eleven bays 
wide with projected windows in each bay, except the three center bays 
which feature a double door entry flanked by a pair of projected 
windows. The building sits on a raised foundation with herring bone 
designed concrete blocks providing ornamentation and ventilation. On 
the interior, the main entry opens into a central octagonal space with 
articulated low arched openings leading to three corridors, with 
offices off each. The central area's ceiling has intersecting beams 
creating a coffered effect. A boot scraper is located on either side 
of the steps leading to the entry lanai (porch).

There are no intrusions within the district. The remainder of the 
block, which is not included in the district, contains parking lots 
and a modern State office building.
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The buildings within the district are of architectural significance as 
examples of styles typical of their period. Both the County Building 
and the Annex were designed by major Honolulu architectural firms. 
The County Building and the no longer extant Lihue Store, both built 
in 1913, were the earliest buildings on Kauai constructed of concrete 
and presaged a new era in the development of Lihue. The County Court­ 
house, designed by State Department of Public Works architect Harry 
Stewart, is one of the better examples on Kauai of the local adaptation 
of the Spanish Mission style to island architecture in the 1930's. 
The only buildings on the island of similar style and comparable 
design merit are the Lihue Post Office (1938) and the Lihue Theater 
(1931). The construction of the courthouse solidified the concept of 
a municipal government center characterized by open space, a concept 
adhered to in recent years with the construction of the new police 
station and the State office building.
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